
OQS - Viewing Case Number 21093658  

911 Call 

P A L M  B E  A C  H C O U N T Y  S H E R  I F  F' S O F F I C E PAGE 1 

CASE NO. 21093658 SUPPLEMENT 1 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 
DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: ROAD PATROL 

911: 
DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 08/07/21 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 8044 NAME: CASAREZ, M ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 
EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 
CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON 08-07-21, AT APPROXIMATELY 1518 HOURS, I WAS ADVISED THAT TA CHILD WAS 

GOING TO BE TRANSPORTED TO PALMS WEST HOSPITAL IN CRITICAL CONDITION. I WENT 

TO THE HOSPITAL AND WAITED FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY FIRE RESCUE TO ARRIVE WITH 

THE CHILD. THE CHILD WAS TAKEN INTO EMERGENCY ROOM #1. SEVERAL MEDICAL 

PERSONNEL WERE TREATING THE CHILD. DR. SMITH PRONOUNCED THE CHILD DECEASED AT 

1551 HOURS. I STAYED ON SCENE UNTIL DETECTIVE C. HAMILTON ARRIVED AT THE 

HOSPITAL WITH A MEDIAL EXAMINER AND A CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATOR. I STAYED AT 

THE HOSPITAL UNTIL THE BODY REMOVAL SERVICES ARRIVED FOR THE CHILD. THIS 

CONCLUDES MY INVOLVEMENT IN THIS CASE. 

D/S CASAREZ #8044 

SD 27290 

COPIED AND PASTED 08/10/2021 
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DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 08/08/21 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY APT. NO.: 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON AUGUST 7, 2021, I RESPONDED TO PALMS WEST HOSPITAL EMERGENCY ROOM IN 

REFERENCE TO A DEATH INVESTIGATION. IT WAS REPORTED THAT EIGHTEEN -MONTH-OLD 

ENORA LAVENIR WAS FOUND UNRESPONSIVE WHILE CO-SLEEPING IN A BED WITH HER 

SISTER, FOURTEEN-YEAR-OLD TAMARA LAVENIR. ENORA WAS TRANSPORTED TO PALMS WEST 

HOSPITAL BY PALM BEACH FIRE RESCUE AND SHE WAS PRONOUNCED DECEASED. 

UPON ARRIVAL I MET DEPUTY M. CASAREZ #8044 WHO WAS POSTED OUTSIDE OF EXAM ROOM 

ONE. HE INFORMED ME ENORA LAVENIR ARRIVED AT THE HOSPITAL AND WAS TREATED IN 

EXAM ROOM ONE. HE EXPLAINED THAT THE ER DOCTOR PRONOUNCED HER DECEASED. FOR 

MORE INFORMATION, REFERENCE DEPUTY CASAREZ'S INVOLVEMENT PLEASE REFER TO HIS 

SUPPLEMENT. 

I ENTERED EXAM ROOM ONE AND SAW ENORA LYING ON THE EXAM TABLE FACING UP. SHE 

HAD VARIOUS MEDICAL DEVICES ATTACHED TO HER. OTHER THAN THE TRAUMA CAUSED BY 

THE MEDICAL PROCEDURES I DID NOT NOTICE ANY VISIBLE SIGNS OF TRAUMA OR INJURY. 

WHILE IN EXAM ROOM ONE INVESTIGATOR CHRISTINE SIMONISE FROM THE PALM BEACH 

COUNTY MEDICAL EXAMINERS OFFICE ARRIVED. ALSO CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATOR 

STEPHANIE MAULER #25015 ARRIVED AND TOOK PHOTOGRAPHS AND GATHERED THE TOP THAT 

ENORA WAS WEARING. ALSO PRESENT AT THIS TIME WAS DCF CHILD PROTECTIVE 

INVESTIGATOR KAITLYN MARTINEZ. 

I MET WITH CHARGE NURSE KRISTEN PATELSKY AND ATTENDING PHYSICIAN DR. DAVID 

SMITH IN EXAM ROOM ONE. DR. SMITH EXPLAINED, ENORA ARRIVED AT THE EMERGENCY 

ROOM AT 1539 HOURS ON AUGUST 7, 2021. ON ARRIVAL ENORA WAS IN CARDIAC ARREST 

AND WAS ALSO COLD TO THE TOUCH. HE BRIEFLY EXPLAINED SOME OF THE MEDICAL 

PROCEDURES HE PERFORMED AND SAID SHE WAS PRONOUNCED DEAD AT 1551 HOURS AUGUST 

7, 2021. IN ADDITION, I WAS ALSO PROVIDED MEDICAL RECORDS OF ENORA'S 
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TREATMENT WHILE AT THE EMERGENCY ROOM. THESE RECORDS WERE LATER PLACED INTO 

EVIDENCE. 
THE REMOVAL SERVICE FOR THE PALM BEACH COUNTY MEDICAL EXAMINER, ELITE REMOVAL 
ARRIVED AND TOOK POSSESSION OF ENORA. ONCE THIS WAS COMPLETE I RESPONDED TO 
THE RESIDENCE AT 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414. ALSO 
RESPONDING TO THE LOCATION WAS CSI MAULER, ME INVESTIGATOR SIMONISE, AND DCF 
PI KAITLYN MARTINEZ. 
ONCE AT THE SCENE I MET WITH SVU DETECTIVE DERRICK GENTILCORE #8403. 
DETECTIVE GENTILCORE BRIEFED ME ON THE SITUATION AT THE RESIDENCE AND ASSISTED 

IN HAVING THE CONSENT TO SEARCH FORM SIGNED. ONCE THE FORM WAS SIGNED CSI 
MAULER PHOTOGRAPHED THE CRIME SCENE. CSI MAULER ALSO VIDEOTAPED THE WALK THRU 
INTERVIEWS PERFORMED AT THE SCENE. IN ADDITION, FOLLOWING THE INTERVIEWS SHE 
COLLECTED THE FOLLOWING FROM THE BEDROOM, THE BOTTOM FITTED SHEET, PILLOW 
CASE, A BABY BOTTLE FROM THE SIDE OF THE BED, AND FORMULA FROM THE KITCHEN. 
FOR MORE INFORMATION, REFERENCE THESE ACTIONS REFER TO CSI MAULER'S CRIME 

SCENE REPORT. 
IT WAS LEARNED ENORA'S FAMILY IS FROM THE FRENCH ISLAND OF GUADELOUPE AND THEY 
SPEAK FRENCH AND ONLY UNDERSTAND LIMITED ENGLISH. PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF'S 

OFFICE COMMUNICATIONS WAS ABLE TO LOCATE DETECTIVE MARTIN GAREAU WHO WAS ABLE 
TO RESPOND TO THE SCENE AND ASSIST WITH TRANSLATION. DETECTIVE GAREAU 
ASSISTED WITH THE WALK THRU VIDEOS AND THE INTERVIEWS. 
ONCE DETECTIVE GAREAU RESPONDED THE WALK THRU VIDEOS WERE CONDUCTED. PRESENT 
FOR THE VIDEOS WERE ME INVESTIGATOR CHRISTINE SIMONISE, DCF PI KAITLYN 
MARTINEZ, DETECTIVE GENTILCORE, DETECTIVE GAREAU FOR TRANSLATION. THE VIDEO 

WAS CONDUCTED BY CSI MAULER. THE FOLLOWING ARE BRIEF SUMMARIES OF THE VIDEOS 
FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED PERSONS SHOULD REFER TO THE COPIES UPLOADED TO 
THE PALM BEACH COUNTY COMMANDER SYSTEM. 
THE FIRST VIDEO WAS DONE BY LYDIE LAVENIR ON AUGUST 7, 2021 AT 754 PM. LYDIE 

EXPLAINED PRIOR TO DISCOVERING HER DAUGHTER ENORA NON RESPONSIVE SHE WAS 
TAKING A NAP AROUND 230 PM SHE WOKE UP GOT SOMETHING TO DRINK AND WENT TO 
CHECK ON THE KIDS. SHE WENT TO TAKE A NAP AROUND 1200 PM AND ENORA WAS AWAKE 
IN THE LIVING ROOM AREA. 
NEXT SHE WENT INTO THE BEDROOM AREA TO SHOW US HOW SHE DISCOVERED ENORA. SHE 
TOOK THE DOLL AND PLACED HER ON THE BED ON THE LEFT SIDE AS YOU FACE THE BED. 
ENORA WAS LYING ON HER RIGHT SIDE FACING THE WALL. HER OLDEST DAUGHTER TAMARA 

WAS LYING ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF THE BED AS YOU FACE IT. TAMARA WAS ALSO ON HER 

RIGHT SIDE FACING THE SAME WALL AS ENORA. TAMARA'S LEFT ARM WAS PLACED OVER 
THE LOWER PORTION OF ENORA AROUND THE HIPS. SHE SAW ENORA'S FACE WAS BLUE. 

LYDIA ATTEMPTED TO DO CPR ON ENORA WHILE THE OTHERS IN THE HOUSE WERE CALLING

911. SHE DEMONSTRATED HOW SHE FOUND ENORA, SHE SCREAMED AND BEGAN CPR. SHE 
NOTICED THE ENORA'S T-SHIRT WAS WET WHEN SHE FOUND HER AND THERE WAS SOME
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LIQUID ON THE BED AROUND HER. 

THERE WERE NO KNOWN CONDITIONS WHICH WOULD CAUSE ENORA TO GET ILL. SHE DID 

HAVE ISSUES WITH REGURGITATING WHEN SHE WAS YOUNGER BUT THAT HAD STOPPED. THE 

LAST TIME LYDIA FED ENORA WAS THE PREVIOUS NIGHT. ENORA HAD FRIES, SOME SMALL 

BITS OF MEAT. LYDIA DEMONSTRATED THE POSITION TAMARA WAS IN WHEN SHE 

DISCOVERED ENORA. 

THIS CONCLUDED THE WALK THRU VIDEO WITH LYDIA LAVENIR. 

THE NEXT VIDEO WAS DONE WITH TAMARA LAVENIR AUGUST 7, 2021, PRIOR TO 

CONDUCTING THE VIDEO TAMARA WAS QUALIFIED ON THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TELLING 

THE TRUTH AND TELLING A LIE THROUGH THE USE OF EXAMPLES. 

PRIOR TO GOING TO SLEEP IN THE BEDROOM TAMARA AWOKE AROUND 7:00 AM SHE MADE 

PANCAKES. SHE ATE AND NOTICED ENORA WAS WAKING UP. SHE WENT TO THE ROOM GOT 

ENORA UP AND FEED HER A BOTTLE OF FORMULA ABOUT 10 OUNCES. SHE DRANK THIS 

AFTER 8:00 AM. ENORA WAS SITTING AT THE KITCHEN COUNTER FOR A WHILE. TAMARA 

WAS WATCHING TV IN THE LIVING ROOM. TAMARA, HER BROTHER TIMEO, AND ENORA WENT 

INTO THE BEDROOM AND WERE PLAYING. AROUND 11:30 AM ENORA WAS TIRED SO TIMEO 

LEFT THE ROOM AND TAMARA AND ENORA LAID DOWN ON THE BED AND TOOK A NAP. PRIOR 

TO THE NAP ENORA HAD A BOTTLE AND A BIT OF A STRAWBERRY. 

TAMARA AND HER MOTHER WENT INTO THE BEDROOM, TAMARA PLACED THE DOLL ON THE BED 

DEMONSTRATING WHERE ENORA WAS ON THE BED. TAMARA PLACED THE DOLL ON THE LEFT 

SIDE OF THE BED AS YOU FACE IT. THE DOLL WAS ON THE RIGHT SIDE FACING THE 

WALL TO THE LEFT. TAMARA WAS LYING NEXT TO ENORA TO THE RIGHT. TAMARA WAS ON 

HER RIGHT SIDE WITH HER RIGHT ARM ABOVE ENORA BY HER HEAD. WHEN SHE WOKE UP 

THE FIRST THING SHE RECALLED WAS ENORA WAS ON HER BACK TO THE RIGHT OF HER, 

HER MOTHER LYDIA WAS SCREAMING. 

TAMARA DOES NOT RECALL ANYTHING FROM THE TIME SHE FELL ASLEEP TO WHEN SHE WAS 

AWOKEN BY HER MOTHER SCREAMING. SHE DEMONSTRATED THE POSITION SHE RECALLS 

BEING IN PRIOR TO HER FALLING ASLEEP. ENORA'S BACK WAS TO TAMARA'S FRONT AND 

TAMARA WAS NOT ON TOP OF ENORA AND HER ARMS WERE NOT OVER ENORA. WHEN SHE 

AWOKE SHE NOTICED THE WETNESS ON THE BED. TAMARA IDENTIFIED THE BOTTLE ON THE 

RIGHT SIDE OF THE BED AS THE ONE SHE FED ENORA AROUND 10:00 PM ON AUGUST 6, 

2021. THIS CONCLUDED THE VIDEO WITH TAMARA. 

FOLLOWING THE WALK THRU VIDEOS I CONDUCTED A INTERVIEWS WITH BORIS LAVENIR, 

LYDIE LAVENIR, SANDRO LAVENIR AND TAMARA LAVENIR. PRESENT FOR THE INTERVIEWS 

WAS DETECTIVE MARTIN GAREAU AND DCF PI KAITLYN MARTINEZ. THE FOLLOWING IS A 

SUMMARY OF THE INTERVIEWS FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUALS SHOULD 

REFER TO THE COPIES OF THE INTERVIEWS WHICH WERE SENT TO THE PHOTO LAB FOR 

UPLOAD TO THE COMMANDER SYSTEM. 

THE FIRST INTERVIEW WAS WITH BORIS LAVENIR WHO IS THE FATHER OF ENORA LAVENIR. 

PRESENT FOR TRANSLATION OF THE INTERVIEW IS DETECTIVE GAREAU AND ALSO PRESENT 

WAS DCF PROTECTIVE INVESTIGATOR KAITLYN MARTINEZ. THE FIRST PART OF THE 
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INTERVIEW INVOLVED GATHERING HIS PERSONAL INFORMATION. 

BORIS IS ENORA'S BIOLOGICAL FATHER. HE HAS FIVE CHILDREN WITH HIS CURRENT 

WIFE LYDIE AND TWO CHILDREN WITH ANOTHER WOMAN. TWO BOYS AND THREE GIRLS, 

SANDRO, TAMARA, NATHEO, TIMEO, AND ENORA. 

BORIS EXPLAINED THE PREGNANCY WITH ENORA WAS NORMAL AND THERE WAS NOTHING OUT 

OF THE NORMAL. HE SAID HE WORKS MANY HOURS AND HE WAS NOT TOO INVOLVED WITH 

THE PREGNANCY BUT SAID SHE DELIVERED TEN DAYS LATE. THE DELIVERY WAS NORMAL. 

HIS WIFE EXPERIENCED A GREAT DEAL OF PAIN BUT THE DELIVERY WAS NORMAL. THERE 

WERE NO MEDICAL ISSUES WITH ENORA ON DELIVERY. THEY WERE RELEASED FROM THE 

HOSPITAL IN THREE OR FOUR DAYS. 

FROM THE TIME OF BIRTH TO THE PRESENT HE NOTED NO PHYSICAL PROBLEMS. HOWEVER, 

HE EXPLAINED BECAUSE OF THE COVID PANDEMIC SHE WAS NOT EXPOSED TO MANY OTHER 

PEOPLE. HE SAID SHE WAS A LITTLE ANTISOCIAL BUT NO PHYSICAL PROBLEMS. HE 

COULD NOT SPEAK INTELLIGENTLY ABOUT ENORA'S FOLLOW UP VISITS WITH HER DOCTORS. 

ENORA'S MOTHER HANDLED THIS PART BECAUSE OF HIS HECTIC WORK SCHEDULE. 

ALTHOUGH HE WAS NOT AWARE OF ANY ISSUES WITH HER DEVELOPMENT. HE ALSO 

CONFIRMED THERE IS NO KNOWN EXPOSURE TO THE CORONA VIRUS. 

BORIS OUTLINED THE PREVIOUS TWENTY-FOUR HOURS PRIOR TO ENORA'S DEATH. THE 

TRIP TO FLORIDA STARTED WITH THE FAMILY TRAVELING TO THE AIRPORT. ON AUGUST 

6, 2021 AT APPROXIMATELY 9:20 AM THE FAMILY TRAVELED TO THE AIRPORT IN TWO 

CARS. BORIS DROPPED HIS CAR AT WORK DROVE THE FAMILY TO THE AIRPORT IN THE 

OTHER VEHICLE. HE DROPPED THEM AT THE AIRPORT AND WENT TO HIS MOTHER IN-LAWS 

HOUSE AND LEFT THE VEHICLE. HE WAS GIVEN A RIDE TO THE AIRPORT TO MEET,HIS 

FAMILY. 

THE FAMILY ARRIVED AT MIAMI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT APPROXIMATELY 12:20 PM. 

THERE IS NO TIME DIFFERENCE IN MIAMI TO GUADELOUPE. THEY WAITED ABOUT 20 

MINUTES FOR THE STROLLER AND WENT TO NATIONAL CAR RENTAL. THEY LEFT NATIONAL 

CAR RENTAL APPROXIMATELY 1:30 PM AND DROVE AND DROVE ONE AND ONE HALF HOURS TO 

THE HOUSE ARRIVING AROUND 3:00 PM. THEY MET WITH THE HOME OWNER WHO RENTED 

THE HOUSE TO THEM AND TALKED FOR A FEW MINUTES. 

NEXT, THEY LEFT TO GET FOOD. THEY GOT TAKEOUT FOOD THE FORD GARAGE RESTAURANT 

AND WENT TO PUBLIX TO GET FOOD AND DRINKS FOR THE VACATION. THEY ATE THE FOOD 

AT HOME AROUND 7: 30 PM. AFTER THEY ATE EVERYONE WAS WATCHING TV AND PLAYING 

ON THEIR PHONES. HE BELIEVES ENORA WENT TO BED LATE BUT DOES NOT .KNOW THE 
SPECIFIC TIME. HE DOES NOT KNOW WHO PUT HER TO BED. HE WOKE UP AROUND 7:30 

AM AND HE SAW TAMARA AWAKE AT 7: 30 AM 

THE OTHER KIDS STARTED WAKING UP, ENORA BROUGHT HIM HIS SLIPPERS AROUND THE 

SAME TIME. HE FELL BACK ASLEEP ON THE COUCH AND REMEMBERS WAKING UP AND ALL 

FIVE OF THE KIDS WERE WATCHING TV. HE FELL BACK ASLEEP. HE WOKE UP SAW THE 

WIFE WALK THROUGH THE LIVING ROOM. HE WENT TO THE KITCHEN TO GET MILK. HE 

HEARD SOMEONE SCREAM, FROM THE ROOM ENORA WAS SLEEPING IN, "ENORA IS DEAD." 
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HE WENT TO THE ROOM SAW HIS SON SANDOR AND TOLD HIM TO CALL 911. HIS WIFE 

LYDIE WAS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE BED AREA. ENORA WAS LAYING OFF TO THE LEFT 

SIDE OF THE BED AS YOU LOOK AT IT. TAMARA WAS LYING TO THE RIGHT OF ENORA. 

HE SAW A LITTLE WHITE STUFF NEXT TO HER MOUTH. HE SAID IT LOOKED LIKE SHE WAS 

SLEEPING. THE PARAMEDICS ARRIVED AND CAME IN THE ROOM. THEY TOOK ENORA TO 

THE HOSPITAL AND HE RESPONDED TO THE HOSPITAL. 

BORIS EXPLAINED THAT IN THE LAST TWENTY-FOUR HOURS ENORA HAD TWO FALLS. ONE 

OCCURRED AT MIAMI AIRPORT WHEN THE STROLLER FELL OVER. HE DID NOT WITNESS THE 

FALL AND SAW NO SIGNED OF INJURIES, NO CHANGE IN ENORA'S BEHAVIOR. THIS 

CONCLUDED THE INTERVIEW WITH BORIS LAVENIR. 

NEXT, I INTERVIEWED LYDIE LAVENIR THE BIOLOGICAL MOTHER OF ENORA. PRESENT FOR 

THE INTERVIEW WAS DETECTIVE GAREAU AND KAITLYN MARTINEZ FROM DCF. THE FIRST 

PART OF THE INTERVIEW INVOLVED GATHERING LYDIE'S PERSONAL INFORMATION. SHE 

HAS FIVE CHILDREN WITH BORIS AND THEY ARE LISTED ABOVE. 

DURING ENORA'S PREGNANCY SHE HAD CONTRACTIONS THE LAST THREE OR FOUR MONTHS OF 

PREGNANCY AND WAS BEDRIDDEN UNTIL SHE GAVE BIRTH. ENORA WAS BORN THROUGH 

NATURAL CHILD BIRTH AND WAS A WEEK LATE. THERE WERE NO OTHER ISSUES DURING 

THE PREGNANCY. THEY REMAINED IN THE HOSPITAL FOR THREE DAYS AFTER DELIVERY. 

THERE WERE NO MEDICAL ISSUES AFTER HER BIRTH. ONCE THEY GOT HOME THERE WAS A 

MINOR ISSUE WITH BREASTFEEDING BUT THIS WAS RESOLVED. 

FROM THE TIME OF BIRTH UNTIL THEY WENT ON VACATION ENORA'S HAS HAD NO MAJOR 

MEDICAL ISSUES OR INJURIES. SHE HAS HAD NORMAL CHECKUPS AND IS NORMAL FOR 

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT. SHE HAS HAD SOME COLLEAGUES AT WORK WHO HAVE HAD 

COVID BUT NO ONE CLOSE TO ENORA HAS HAD COVID. 

LYDIA SAID THEY FAMILY LEFT ON AUGUST 6, 2021, BORIS DROPPED HIS CAR AT WORK. 

BORIS DROPPED THE FAMILY AT THE AIRPORT. HE WENT BACK TO HER MOTHER'S HOUSE 

LEFT THE VEHICLE AND GOT A RIDE TO THE AIRPORT. THE FLIGHT LEFT THE AIRPORT 

AROUND 9: 30 AM. THE ARRIVED IN MIAMI AROUND 12:30 PM. THEY WENT TO NATIONAL 

RENTAL CAR. THEY LEFT AROUND 3:00 PM AND ARRIVED AT THE RENTAL HOUSE AROUND 

4:00 PM. 

WHILE AT THE AIRPORT HER THREE-YEAR-OLD AND NINE-YEAR-OLD WERE PLAYING WITH A 

SUITCASE AROUND THE STROLLER. THE STROLLER TURNED OVER. ENORA CRIED FOR A 

MINUTE BUT SHE WAS ABLE TO PICK HER UP AND CONSOLE HER. SHE STOPPED CRYING 

AND LYDIA PUT HER DOWN. SHE WALKED AND APPEARED NORMAL. THEY WENT AND GOT IN 

THE CAR. SHE DID NOT VOMIT OR APPEAR OUT OF THE NORMAL. 

THEY ARRIVED AT THE HOUSE AROUND ABOUT 4:00 PM, THEY MET THE LADY WHO RENTED 

THEM THE HOUSE. THE HUSBAND AND SANDRO LEFT TO GO GET SOME FOOD. WHILE THEY 

WERE GONE SHE BATHED THE TWO YOUNGEST KIDS . AFTER THEY RETURNED WITH FOOD 

EVERYONE WAS WATCHING TV. BEFORE LYDIA WENT TO BED SHE ASKED SANDRO AND 

TAMARA TO PUT THE CHILDREN TO SLEEP BY 9:00 PM. 

LYDIA WOKE UP AT 5:00 AM SHE CHECKED ON THE CHILDREN. AFTER SHE WENT TO THE 
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BATHROOM CALLED A FEW PEOPLE ON WHAT'S APP. SAID SOME PRAYERS AND WENT TO 

BED. SHE MADE A PHONE CALL FROM BED AROUND 8:00 AM. SHE SHOWED ME THE TEXT 

FROM THE BATHROOM WHICH CONFIRMED THE TEXT. SHE SAW HER OLDEST SON IN THE 

LIVING ROOM AND HE COMPLAINED OF A STOMACH ACHE. SHE GAVE HIM MEDICINE FOR 
THE STOMACH ACHE. SHE ALSO SAW HER HUSBAND SLEEPING ON THE COUCH. AFTER THE 

PHONE CALL SHE FELL ASLEEP. 
SHE WOKE UP AROUND 2:30 PM SHE ASKED IF EVERYONE WAS OK AND WAS TOLD THE GIRLS 
ARE STILL SLEEPING. THIS IS WHEN SHE WENT INTO THE BEDROOM TO CHECK ON THEM. 

SHE DISCOVERED ENORA IN THE BED. THE REST OF THE EVENTS REFERENCE HER FINDING 

ENORA WERE DETAILED IN THE WALK THROUGH VIDEO. LYDIA SAID ENORA HAS NOT 

SUSTAINED ANY INJURIES PRIOR TO THEM ARRIVING AT THEIR VACATION OTHER THAN THE 

STROLLER INCIDENT. 
SHE DESCRIBES ENORA AS A GOOD EATER SHE HAS ONE OR TWO BOTTLES A DAY AND SHE 
EATS OTHER FOOD AS WELL. SHE HAS NO KNOWN ALLERGIES. SHE HAD HER LAST DOCTOR 
VISIT APPROXIMATELY TWO MONTHS AGO. ENORA HAD A FEVER AND THE DOCTOR GAVE HER 

A PRESCRIPTION FOR HER AND ENORA TOOK THE MEDICATION. THE DOCTOR WAS DR. 

PERIANIN PHONE# 00-590-590-82-0949. 

NEXT, I INTERVIEWED TAMARA LAVENIR ALSO PRESENT FOR THE INTERVIEW WAS 
DETECTIVE GAREAU AND KAITLYN MARTINEZ FROM DCF. TAMARA WAS QUALIFIED BETWEEN 
TELLING THE TRUTH AND TELLING A LIE. SHE AGREED TO TELL THE TRUTH. TAMARA IS 

THE OLDER SISTER OF ENORA. SHE SAID, THEY FLEW FROM GUADALUPE TO MIAMI 

ARRIVING IN AROUND 1:00 PM. WHILE AT THE AIRPORT HER LITTLE BROTHERS WERE 

PLAYING AN ENORA'S STROLLER FELL OVER. SHE NOTICED A RED MARK ON THE RIGHT 

SIDE OF HER FOREHEAD. ENORA CRIED INITIALLY BUT CALMED DOWN IN LESS THAN A 

MINUTE. 
THEY ARRIVED AT THE HOME ENORA APPEARED FINE NO ISSUES FROM THE FALL. WHILE 

AT HOME HER DAD AND BROTHER WENT TO GET FOOD AND OTHER ITEMS FOR THE HOME. 

HER MOM BATHED ENORA AND HER BROTHER. HER DAD BROUGHT FOOD HOME. ENORA ATE 
SOME FRIES AND A LITTLE BIT OF A BURGER. 
THEY WERE WATCHING TV AROUND 8:45 PM SHE TOOK ENORA TO BED. ENORA FELL 

ASLEEP. TAMARA WAS WATCHING TV SHE HEARD HER MOM AND LITTLE BROTHER. SHE GOT 

UP AND PUT HER BROTHER TO BED IN A SEPARATE BEDROOM. SHE WENT BACK INTO HER 

ROOM WITH ENORA. ENORA WOKE UP AT APPROXIMATELY 10:0 OPM SHE FED HER A BOTTLE 

OF FORMULA ABOUT 270 ML, THIS WAS THE BOTTLE FOUND ON THE SIDE OF THE BED. 
ENORA DRANK THE WHOLE BOTTLE AND FELL ASLEEP, THEN TAMARA FELL ASLEEP. SHE 
WOKE UP AROUND 7:35 AM, ENORA WAS STILL SLEEPING. SHE MADE PANCAKES. TAMARA 

ATE WITH HER LITTLE BROTHER. AFTER SHE WENT AND CHECKED ON ENORA. ENORA WAS 

JUST WAKING UP. SHE TOOK ENORA TO THE LIVING ROOM AROUND 8:45 AM. 
SHE GAVE HER ANOTHER BOTTLE OF FORMULA A LITTLE LATER THAN 8:45 AM, 270 ML AND 

ENORA DRANK THE WHOLE BOTTLE. SHE STAYED IN THE LIVING ROOM AND AROUND 10:30 

AM SHE WENT TO THE BEDROOM. HER LITTLE BROTHER AND ENORA ALSO WENT TO THE 
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BEDROOM AND WERE PLAYING. SHE WATCHED TV AND PLAYED ON THE PHONE. HER LITTLE 
BROTHER AND ENORA WERE GOING ON AND OFF THE BED PLAYING. 
SHE WAS LYING AGAINST THE HEAD BOARD OF THE BED AND SHE NOTICED ENORA GETTING 
TIRED. ENORA FELL ASLEEP AROUND 12:00 AM AND TAMARA SHORTLY AFTER. SHE DOES 
NOT REMEMBER ANYTHING ELSE UNTIL HER MOTHER CAME IN TO THE ROOM. THIS IS THE 
PART DOCUMENTED UNDER THE WALK THROUGH. 
TAMARA DESCRIBED THE INCIDENT THE PREVIOUS DAY WHEN ENORA SLIDE OFF THE BED 
AND FELL OFF THE BED AND HIT HER "BUTT." ENORA SPRUNG RIGHT UP FROM THE FALL 
AND APPEARED OK. SHE HAD NO ISSUES FOLLOWING THIS FALL. 
FOLLOWING THIS INTERVIEW, I INTERVIEWED HER OLDER BROTHER SANDRO LAVENIR ALSO 
PRESENT WERE DETECTIVE GAREAU AND KAITLYN MARTINEZ FROM DCF. SANDRO IS 
FIFTEEN YEARS OLD AND LIVES WITH HIS MOTHER AND FATHER IN GUADELOUPE. HE WAS 
QUALIFIED ON THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TELLING THE TRUTH AND TELLING A LIE. HE 
AGREED TO BE TRUTHFUL DURING THE INTERVIEW. 
THEY FAMILY FLEW FROM GUADELOUPE TO MIAMI AND ARRIVED IN MIAMI AROUND 12:50 
PM. THEY WENT TO NATIONAL RENTAL CAR TO GET A RENTAL CAR. WHILE AT THE 
AIRPORT HE KNOWS HIS SISTER FELL OVER IN THE STROLLER BUT HE DID NOT SEE IT IN 
PERSON. HE SAID HE DID NOT NOTICE ANY INJURIES TO HIS SISTER THE ONLY THING 
HE NOTICED WAS SHE WAS SLEEPING A LITTLE MORE THAN USUAL. 
THEY DROVE TO THE HOUSE AND AT THE HOUSE HIS FATHER AND HE WENT TO GET SOME 
FOOD. THEY CAME HOME ATE AND HIS DAD AND HE WENT TO WALMART TO GET WATER AND 
OTHER ITEMS FOR THE HOUSE. THEY RETURNED FROM WALMART. HE WATCHED TV WITH 
THE KIDS. HE WASHED UP AND WENT TO BED AROUND 11:00PM. 
HE WOKE UP AROUND 7:30 AM ON AUGUST 7, 2021. HE HAD A STOMACH ACHE SO HE TOOK 
MEDICINE FOR HIS STOMACH AND WENT BACK TO BED. HE WOKE UP AGAIN AT 1:00 PM, 
EVERYONE WAS ASLEEP EXCEPT FOR HIS TWO BROTHERS. HE MADE THEM BREAKFAST. 
AROUND 2:30 PM HE WENT TO THE BATHROOM AND BETWEEN 3:00 OR 3:15 PM HE HEARD 
HIS MOM SAY HIS SISTER WAS DEAD. HE GRABBED A TOWEL AND WENT TO THE ROOM. 
HIS SISTER ENORA WAS BLUE. HE GRABBED THE PHONE AND CALLED 911. 
HIS DAD TOOK THE PHONE AND SPOKE TO 911. HE WENT INTO THE ROOM WHILE HIS MOM 
WAS DOING CPR. HE WENT OUTSIDE TO FLAG DOWN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. HE WAS TOLD 
THAT HIS SISTER FELL OFF THE BED BUT DID NOT SEE IT. HE DID NOT NOTICE 
ANYTHING UNUSUAL ABOUT HIS SISTER ENORA, SHE WAS PLAYING NORMAL. THE ONLY 
THING HE NOTICED WAS SHE WAS SLEEPING A LITTLE MORE THAN USUAL. HE DESCRIBED 
IT AS NAPPING MORE THAN USUAL. 
THIS CONCLUDED THE INTERVIEWS FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED PERSONS SHOULD 
REFER TO THE COPIES WHICH WERE EMAILED TO THE PHOTO LAB TO BE UPLOADED TO THE 
COMMANDER SYSTEM. 
ON AUGUST 8, 2021 AT 0935 AM, I RESPONDED TO THE PALM BEACH COUNTY MEDICAL 
EXAMINER'S OFFICE TO BE PRESENT FOR THE AUTOPSY OF ENORA LAVERNIR. THE 
AUTOPSY WAS PERFORMED BY DR. CATHERINE MILLER MD. 
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THIS CASE WILL REMAIN OPEN PENDING THE RESULTS OF THE AUTOPSY. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SW 

08/08/2021 

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 09/03/2021/MDR/#6405 
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CASE NO. 21093658 SUPPLEMENT 3 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 

DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 09/29/21 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON SEPTEMBER 24, 2021, I RECEIVED A CALL FROM DR. CATHERINE MILLER MD AND 

INVESTIGATOR CHRISTINE SIMONISE FROM THE PALM BEACH COUNTY MEDICAL EXAMINER'S 

OFFICE. THEY INFORMED ME OF THE LAB RESULT FINDINGS FROM ENORA LAVENIR. THE 

FINDINGS REVEALED FENTANYL IN ENORA'S BLOOD AT TOXIC LEVELS. 

ON SEPTEMBER 27, 2021, I RESPONDED TO THE AREA OF 1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY 

WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414. I KNOCKED ON THE DOOR OF 1630 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY 

WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414. I MADE CONTACT WITH A FEMALE WHO SAID SHE WAS OUT 

OF TOWN IN BRAZIL FROM JULY 9, 2021 TO SEPTEMBER 9, 2021. 

I ATTEMPTED TO MAKE CONTACT AT 1619 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY BUT THERE WAS NO 

ANSWER. I CALLED THE RESIDENCE OF 1619 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY AND SPOKE TO 

NANCY OLSEN. THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF WHAT NANCY OLSEN HAD TO SAY. IN 

LATE JUNE OR EARLY JULY, SHE RECALLED A PARTY OCCURRING AT THE RESIDENCE OF 

1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY WELLINGTON, FLORIDA. SHE DESCRIBED THE INDIVIDUALS 

AS YOUNGER MALES AND FEMALES IN THEIR EARLY TWENTIES, MOSTLY BLACK AND 

HISPANIC IN COLOR. NANCY ALSO DESCRIBE A SIMILAR PARTY OCCURRING AT THE 

RESIDENCE ON LABOR DAY WEEKEND. WITH INDIVIDUALS OF SIMILAR DESCRIPTION 

ATTENDING. 

I ATTEMPTED TO MAKE CONTACT AT THE ADDRESS OF 1631 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY 

WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414. I WAS UNABLE TO CONTACT ANYONE AT THIS LOCATION. 

I ATTEMPTED TO MAKE CONTACT AT 1606 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY WHICH IS THE RESIDENCE 

DIRECTLY TO THE NORTH OF 1618. I MADE CONTACT WITH THE WIFE OF CARLOS DE 

ARELLANO. SHE ADVISED HER HUSBAND WAS THE ONE WHO SAW AND INTERACTED WITH THE 

INDIVIDUALS AT 1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY. HER HUSBAND CARLOS DE ARELLANO WAS 

NOT HOME BUT HE AGREED TO TALK TO ME AT HIS WORK. 

printed by Employee Id#: 30347 on August 05, 2022 10:57:34AM 

http://oqs.pbso.org/index.cfm?fa=dspCase&fromrec=1&srhta=d998dfd4371ad2b3-51106E8... 8/5/2022 



OQS - Viewing Case Number 21093658  

CASE NO. 21093658 

911 Call 

P A L M  B E  A C  H C O U N T Y  S H E R  I F  F' S O F F I C E PAGE 2 

SUPPLEMENT 3 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 

DISPOSITION: ZULU 

I RESPONDED TO 13304 INDIAN MOUND WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414 WERE I MET WITH 

CARLOS DE ARELLANO. THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE STATEMENT FROM CARLOS. 

THE STATEMENT IS NOT VERBATIM. FOR COMPLETE DETAILS PLEASE REFER TO THE COPY 

WHICH WAS EMAILED TO THE PHOTO LAB FOR UPLOADING TO THE COMMANDER SYSTEM. 

THE FIRST PART OF THE INTERVIEW INVOLVED THE GATHERING OF CARLOS'$ 

INFORMATION. CARLOS RECALLS ON THE DAY PRIOR TO THE INCIDENT I INVESTIGATED 

HE RECALLED CHILDREN ON THE BACK PORCH PLAYING BUT EVERYTHING SEEMED NORMAL. 

HE SAID APPROXIMATELY TWO WEEKS PRIOR TO THIS INCIDENT THERE WAS A PARTY THAT 

OCCURRED AT 1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY. HE SAID THERE WERE APPROXIMATELY EIGHT 

CARS AT THE RESIDE AND PEOPLE GOING IN AND OUT OF THE RESIDENCE AND WALKING 

BEHIND THE RESIDENCE FROM THE NORTH SIDE. HE DESCRIBED THE PEOPLE AT THE 

PARTY AS MOSTLY BLACK MALES. THEY WERE IN THE FORTY TO FORTY-FIVE YEARS OF 

AGE AND MOSTLY MALE. 

NEXT CARLOS SAID THE SECOND EVENT WAS THE DEATH INVESTIGATION. THE NEXT EVENT 

AFTER THIS WAS AROUND LABOR DAY WEEKEND. HE DESCRIBED THIS AS A PARTY AT 1618 

THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY. ON THIS OCCASION HE CONTACTED THE REAL ESTATE AGENT WHO 

RENTED THE HOUSE. THE PARTY WHICH OCCURRED ON FRIDAY OF LABOR DAY WEEKEND, 

THERE WERE ABOUT FIFTEEN OR TWENTY MALES AND FEMALES MOSTLY MALES. THEY WERE 

AROUND EIGHTEEN TO TWENTY YEARS OLD. CARLOS EXPLAINED THE REAL ESTATE AGENT 

CAME AND MADE EVERYONE LEAVE. CARLOS SAID THE REAL ESTATE AGENT SPOKE TO A 

BLACK FEMALE DESCRIBED AS HEAVY SET IN HER FORTIES OR FIFTIES. CARLOS 

BELIEVED THIS WAS THE ONE THAT PAID FOR THE HOUSE. THERE APPEARED TO BE MORE 

BOYS THAN GIRLS AT THE PARTY. HE RECALLED ONLY SEEING THREE GIRLS AT THIS 

PARTY AND NO VEHICLES PARKED OUT FRONT. ONCE THE PARTY BROKE UP THE ATTENDEES 

STARTED WALKING OFF TO THE NORTH. 

CARLOS BELIEVED THE OLDER BLACK FEMALE APPEARED TO BE THE MOTHER OF ONE OF THE 

GIRLS BY THEIR INTERACTION. CARLOS ALSO THOUGHT IT WAS UNUSUAL WHEN THEY LEFT 

THEY HAD NO BAGGAGE WITH THEM WHICH MADE HIM BELIEVE THEY WERE LOCAL. CARLOS 

BECAME AWARE THE HOUSE WAS AN AIRBNB RENTAL AFTER THE SECOND INCIDENT IN WHICH 

THE DEATH OF A CHILD OCCURRED AT THE HOUSE. 

ON SEPTEMBER 28, 2021, I RECEIVED A CALL FROM MARC HOTUJEC WHO LIVES AT 1647 

BALTRUSAL PLACE WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414 THIS IS ONE BLOCK TO THE WEST OF 

1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY. MARC HAD NO INDEPENDENT RECOLLECTION OF THE FIRST 

PARTY PRIOR TO THE DEATH OR THE DEATH THAT OCCURRED. ALTHOUGH HE WAS THERE 

WITH CARLOS AT THE PARTY ON LABOR DAY WEEKEND. MARC PROVIDED A SIMILAR 

ACCOUNT OF THE INCIDENT AS DID CARLOS. HE DID NOT HAVE ANY ADDITIONAL 

INFORMATION TO ADD. 

BASED ON THE INFORMATION ABOVE I AM ATTEMPTING TO GATHER INFORMATION FROM THE 

PROPERTY MANAGER AT 1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY AND THROUGH AIRBNB ABOUT THE 

PARTIES WHO RENTED THE RESIDENCE PRIOR TO THE DEATH OF ENORA. 

ON SEPTEMBER 29, 2021, I INITIATED A REQUEST THROUGH INTERPOL FOR ASSISTANCE 
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FROM THE POLICE AUTHORITIES ON GUADELOUPE ISLAND FOR THE FOLLOWING: 

1. I AM REQUESTING ASSISTANCE WITH REINTERVIEWING THE PARENTS OF A DECEASED 

18-MONTH-OLD FEMALE.

2. REQUEST MEDICAL RECORDS FOR ENORA T. LAVENIR DOB: 12/15/2019

CHILD PHYSICIAN: DR. JOSE PERIANIN

ADDRESS: 6 IMM LIBER PLOCOSTE SUD,, POINTE-a-PITRE, GUADELOUPE 97110,

PHONE NUMBER: 590 590 820 0949 

3. CRIMINAL HISTORY INFORMATION ON BORIS LAVENIR DOB: 06/13/1973 AND LYDIE

Z. LAVENIR DOB: 08/28/1981. 

THIS CASE WHILE REMAIN OPEN PENDING THE RESULTS OF THE INTERPOL REQUEST AS 

WELL AS ANY INFORMATION FROM THE RENTAL AGENT OR AIRBNB. IN ADDITION, THE 

AUTOPSY REPORT HAS NOT BEEN ISSUED AS OF THIS DATE. 

THIS CASE WILL REMAIN OPEN PENDING. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SVU 

09/29/2021 

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 10/15/2021/MDR/#6405 
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DIVISION: DETECTIVE 
911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 11/02/21 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. · ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON OCTOBER 4, 2021, I RECEIVED A CHEMISTRY REPORT FROM THE PALM BEACH COUNTY 

FORENSIC LAB, WHICH READ AS FOLLOWS: 

REQUEST FOR ANALYSIS: IT WAS REQUESTED THAT THE CHEMISTRY UNIT PERFORM 

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ANALYSIS. ALL ITEMS OF EVIDENCE SUBMITTED FOR ANALYSIS 

WILL BE RETURNED TO THE PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE EVIDENCE UNIT, 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. IN ADDITION, ONLY THOSE ITEMS DISCUSSED BELOW WERE 

EXAMINED FOR THIS REPORT. 

ON 10/01/2021, LABORATORY ACTIVITIES BEGAN FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS OF 

EVIDENCE: 

SUBMISSION: 002 ONE SEALED EVIDENCE BAG CONTAINING BUBBLE WRAP CONTAINING A 

PLASTIC CONTAINER WITH 3 COMPARTMENTS EACH CONTAINING OFF-WHITE POWDER. 

SUBMISSION: 003 ONE SEALED EVIDENCE BAG CONTAINING BUBBLE WRAP CONTAINING A 

BABY BOTTLE CONTAINING BROWN SEMI-SOLID RESIDUE. 

RESULTS AND CONCLUSIONS 

SUB #002 

NO CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES DETECTED 

NET WEIGHT: 58.0989 GRAMS+/- 0.0036 GRAMS AT A COVERAGE PROBABILITY OF 

99.73%. 

CAFFEINE (NON-CONTROLLED) TENTATIVELY IDENTIFIED BUT NOT CONFIRMED. 

l COMPARTMENT ANALYZED

SUB #003

NO CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES DETECTED

NET WEIGHT: 0.6700 GRAMS+/- 0.0036 GRAMS AT A COVERAGE PROBABILITY OF 99.73%. 

THE FOLLOWING METHODS WERE USED FOR DRUG ANALYSIS: 
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- WEIGHT ANALYSIS

- COLOR TEST(S)

- GAS CHROMATOGRAPHY-MASS SPECTROMETRY (GC-MS) 
THE REPORT WAS SIGNED BY STEVEN J WILLIAMS FORENSIC SCIENTIST PALM BEACH

COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 

THIS CASE WILL REMAIN OPEN PENDING ASSISTANCE THROUGH INTERPOL TO CONDUCT 

FOLLOW UP INTERVIEWS WITH THE FAMILY. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SVU

11/02/2021

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 11/02/2021/MDR/#6405
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CASE NO. 21093658 SUPPLEMENT 5 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 

DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 
DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 01/03/22 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 
INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON DECEMBER 8, 2021, I RECEIVED A SUBPOENA REQUEST TO OBTAIN RECORDS FROM 

AIRBNB REGARDING THE RESIDENCE AT 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 

33414 FROM 07/01/2021 TO 08/07/2021. I CLERKED THE SUBPOENA AND SENT IT VIA 

THE WEB PAGE TO AIRBNB. I AM CURRENTLY AWAITING A RESPONSE FROM THEM. IN 

ADDITION, I FOLLOWED UP ON THE REQUEST SENT THROUGH INTERPOL AND WAS ADVISED 

THERE IS NO NEW INFORMATION THAT HAS BEEN RECEIVED. 

ON DECEMBER 16, 2021, I SENT A FOLLOW UP TO INTERPOL IN REFERENCE TO THE 

PREVIOUS REQUEST AND HAVE YET TO HER ANY FURTHER ABOUT THE REQUEST. ON 

DECEMBER 30, 2021, I RECEIVED INFORMATION FROM AIRBNB IN REFERENCE TO THE 

SUBPOENA SENT. THE DATA WAS FOR THE WRONG DATE. I CONTACTED AIRBNB AND 

REQUESTED THE CORRECT INFORMATION. ON JANUARY 3, 2022, I RECEIVED THE CORRECT 

INFORMATION FROM THE RENTALS. THE ONLY RENTAL REGISTERED THROUGH AIRBNB WAS 

THAT OF THE VICTIM'S FAMILY. I WAS INFORMED THERE WERE NO OTHER RENTALS. 

BASED ON THE INFORMATION GATHERED FROM THE NEIGHBORING RESIDENCE THERE WERE 

OTHER RENTALS PRIOR TO THE VICTIM'S FAMILY. HOWEVER, THESE DO NOT SHOW UP ON 

AIRBNB AND MAY HAVE BEEN MADE DIRECTLY THROUGH THE HOMEOWNER OR RENTAL AGENT. 

PRIOR TO REQUESTING THE AIRBNB SUBPOENA, I CONTACTED THE RENTAL AGENT YULIA 

TIMPY WHO WAS NOT VERY HELPFUL AND REFUSED TO PROVIDE ANY INFORMATION. 

ON DECEMBER 23, 2021, I RECEIVED A CAUSE OF DEATH REPORT FROM THE MEDICAL 

EXAMINER'S OFFICE WHICH LISTED THE FOLLOWING: 

CAUSE OF DEATH (A): ACUTE FENTANYL TOXICITY 

MANNER OF DEATH: ACCIDENT 

HOW INJURY OCCURRED: DECEDENT INGESTED FENTANYL 

EXAMINATION TYPE / DATE / TIME: AUTOPSY - COMPLETE 8/8/2021 9:00 AM 
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THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE REPORT FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED 
PERSONS SHOULD REFER TO THE CAUSE OF DEATH REPORT PRODUCED BY THE PALM BEACH 

COUNTY MEDICAL EXAMINER'S OFFICE. 

IN REVIEW OF THE INITIAL INVESTIGATION, THE WALK THROUGH INTERVIEWS AND 
INTERVIEWS, THE EVIDENCE GATHERED AT THE CRIME SCENE, AND THE RESULTS OF THE 

AUTOPSY REPORT, I AM UNABLE TO DETERMINE HOW ENORA LAVENIR INGESTED THE 

FENTANYL AND THE SOURCE OF THE FENTANYL. THERE WERE NO SIGNS OF ANY NARCOTIC 
MEDICATIONS OR ANY ILLEGAL NARCOTICS AT THE CRIME SCENE. ACCORDING TO THE 

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES INVESTIGATOR KAITLYN MARTINEZ, ENORA'S 

PARENTS BORIS LAVENIR AND LYDIE LAVENIR TESTED NEGATIVE FOR ANY DRUG USE 

DURING A DRUG SCREENING. 

BASED ON THE ABOVE THE DEATH IS LISTED AS ACCIDENTAL. THIS REPORT WILL REMAIN 

AN INFORMATION REPORT AND THE DEATH LISTED AS ACCIDENT UNLESS ANY VIABLE LEADS 

OR INFORMATION IS PRESENTED. 
THIS REMAINS A ZULU FOR INFORMATION. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SVU 

01/03/2022 

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 01/10/2022/MDR/#6405 
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DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 
911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 03/28/22 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON JANUARY 31, 2022, I WAS ISSUED A SUBPOENA FOR THE BUSINESS OF THE 12TH 

FAIRWAY FINANCIAL LLC AND SERVED THE SAME ON FEBRUARY 01, 2022 TO THE REGISTER 

AGENT FOR THE BUSINESS THOMAS ZEICHMAN AND THE MANAGER RONALD CORTAMLIA. 

ON MARCH 4, 2022, I RECEIVED THE INFORMATION ON THE RENTAL AT THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

IN WELLINGTON. IN REVIEWING THE DOCUMENTS, I WAS ABLE TO LOCATE THREE 

INDIVIDUALS WHO RENTED THE PROPERTY WITH IN A CLOSE TIME FRAME AS THE 

DECEASED'$ PARENTS. THEY WERE THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS, RASHIDA WELLS, JAMES 

BREMNER, SHERWIN RIVERO. I SENT AN EMAIL TO THOMAS ZEICHMAN REQUESTING 

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THESE INDIVIDUALS AS PER THE SUBPOENA. I AM CURRENTLY 

WAITING ON THIS INFORMATION. 

IN ADDITION, I CONTINUE TO ATTEMPT TO WORK THROUGH INTERPOL TO MAKE CONTACT 

WITH THE VICTIM'S FAMILY AGAIN FOR A CLARIFICATION INTERVIEW AND RECORDS. 

HOWEVER, AT THIS TIME I HAVE NO RECEIVED ANY CONTACT FROM INTERPOL. 

ON MARCH 28, 2022, I RECEIVED A COMPLETED FINALE CASE SUMMARY AND MEDICAL 

CONSULTATION FROM THE CHILD PROTECTIVE TEAM. THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF 

THE REPORT AND IS NOT VERBATIM. FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED PERSONS 

SHOULD REFER TO THE COPY SUBMITTED INTO EVIDENCE AT THE PALM BEACH COUNTY 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 

SUMMARY: 

BASED ON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY DCF, LAW ENFORCEMENT, CPT MEDICAL 

CONSULTATION, AND SURVIVING SIBLING STAFFING, IT APPEARS THERE ARE INDICATORS 

OF NEGLECT BY AN UNKNOWN PERPETRATOR, AND NO INDICATORS FOR PHYSICAL ABUSE 

TOWARDS THIS CHILD, ENORA LAVENIR. 

RISK FACTORS IDENTIFIED AND DISCUSSED WITH THE CPI INCLUDE: 
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1. MALTREATMENT TYPE: THE INITIAL REPORT TO DCF WAS DUE TO THE DEATH OF

THIS CHILD.

2. CO-SLEEPING: THE FAMILY ADMITTED TO CO-SLEEPING WITH THE 1-YEAR-OLD

CHILD, ALTHOUGH THE CHILD'S DEATH WAS NOT A RESULT OF CO-SLEEPING.

MEDICAL CONSULTATION STATES:

"I REVIEWED THE PALM BEACH COUNTY FIRE RESCUE RECORDS, PALMS WEST HOSPITAL

RECORDS, ME AUTOPSY, ME INVESTIGATOR'S REPORT, LABS, BODY CHARTS, USS 

CONTAINING PBSO CRIME SCENE PHOTOS AND PBSO FINAL LE REPORT. I REVIEWED THE 

DCF INVESTIGATIVE INTERVIEW INFORMATION. 

THE AUTOPSY OF THE DESCENDANT WAS PERFORMED ON 8/8/21, AND WAS POSITIVE FOR

FENTANYL IN THE BLOOD. ON EXAM OF THE ORGANS, THE HEART, SPLEEN, KIDNEY AND

LIVER WERE REPORTED TO BE ENLARGED, AND THERE WAS NOTED CEREBRAL EDEMA. THE

VIRAL CULTURE OF THE LUNGS WAS POSITIVE FOR RSV (RESPIRATORY SYNCYTIAL VIRUS),

WITH CONSISTENT HISTOLOGICAL CHANGES. DESPITE THE NOTED ENLARGED ORGANS AS

NOTED ABOVE, THE HISTOLOGY OF THE ORGANS WAS NORMAL FOR EACH ONE. THERE WAS NO

EVIDENCE ON AUTOPSY OF BONE INJURY, AND THE NASOPHARYNGEAL SWAB WAS POSITIVE

FOR RSV. FORENSIC TOXICOLOGY WAS POSITIVE FOR FENTANYL, (OPIOID).

THE ASSIGNED CAUSE OF DEATH WAS ACUTE FENTANYL TOXICITY; MANNER OF DEATH, AN 

ACCIDENT, AND HOW DEATH OCCURRED, - DESCENDENT INGESTED FENTANYL.

THERE WAS A TOXICOLOGY EVALUATION/CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ANALYSIS PERFORMED ON

THE CONTENTS OF A PLASTIC CONTAINER WITH 3 COMPARTMENTS, EACH CONTAINING OFF­

WHITE POWDER, AND A BABY BOTTLE CONTAINING BROWN SEMI-SOLID RESIDUE. THE

RESULTS CAME BACK NEGATIVE FOR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES WITH ONE POSSIBLE RESULT 

POSITIVE FOR CAFFEINE. CONFIRMATORY TESTING WITH GAS CHROMATOGRAPHY AND MASS 

SPECTROSCOPY WAS PERFORMED. 

IT WAS RECORDED THAT IT WAS UNKNOWN HOW THE DECEDENT INGESTED THE FENTANYL AND 

THE SOURCE OF THE FENTANYL. "THERE WERE NO SIGNS OF ANY ILLEGAL NARCOTICS AT 

THE CRIME SCENE. THE PARENTS TESTED NEGATIVE FOR ANY DRUG."

AFTER REVIEW OF THE RECORDS, THERE IS NO INDICATION THAT MEMBERS OF THE

HOUSEHOLD, THE PARENTS, WERE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CHILD OBTAINING FENTANYL AND

INGESTING IT. WITH RESPECT TO AN ALLEGED "UNKNOWN PERPETRATOR", THERE ARE

POSITIVE FINDINGS FOR NEGLECT: THIS 1£ MONTH OLD INGESTED FENTANYL FROM 

SOMEWHERE AND BECAUSE OF SOMEONE, AND THIS PERPETRATOR REMAINS UNKNOWN AT THIS

TIME.

THERE ARE NO FINDINGS FOR PHYSICAL ABUSE.

I AM CURRENTLY AWAITING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FROM THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY

ABOUT PAST RENTERS AND CONTACT FROM INTERPOL. AT THIS TIME THE MANNER OF THE 

INGESTION OF FENTANYL IS UNDETERMINED. THEREFORE, THE ORIGIN OF THE FENTANYL 

IS UNKNOWN AND THE CAUSE STILL REMAINS ACCIDENTAL. THIS CASE REMAINS A ZULU 

FOR INFORMATION. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 
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DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 05/16/22 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 
APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON APRIL 15, 2022, I CONDUCTED A ZOOM INTERVIEW WITH LYDIE LAVENIR AND BORIS 

LAVENIR THE MOTHER AND FATHER OF ENORA LAVENIR. THE ZOOM INTERVIEW WAS 
CREATED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ATTORNEY ADAM ROSE WHO REPRESENTS THE LAVENIR'S 

IN A CIVIL MATTER. MR. ROSE ALSO HAD SEVERAL OTHER INDIVIDUALS PRESENT FOR 

THE INTERVIEW. ALSO PRESENT FROM THE PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE WERE 

SGT. J. MARTINEZ AND DET. MARTIN GAREAU WHO TRANSLATED FOR THE INTERVIEW FROM 

FRENCH TO ENGLISH AND ENGLISH TO FRENCH. 

THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE SWORN STATEMENT FROM LYDIE AND BORIS AND IS 

NOT VERBATIM. FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF THE INTERVIEW AUTHORIZED PERSONS SHOULD 

REFER TO THE COPY OF THE AUDIO SUBMITTED INTO EVIDENCE AT THE PALM BEACH 

COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 

FIRST, I COMPLETED A SUMMARY OF THE INFORMATION THAT WAS PREVIOUSLY PROVIDED 

IN THE STATEMENTS CONDUCTED THE DAY OF THE INCIDENT ON AUGUST 07, 2021. THE 

FAMILY HAD ARRIVED THROUGH MIAMI AIRPORT ON AUGUST 6, 2021. THEY TRAVELED TO 

THE RENTAL HOUSE DIRECTLY FROM THE AIRPORT IN A RENTAL CAR AND ARRIVED AT THE 

LOCATION IN WELLINGTON, FLORIDA OF 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY. BORIS AND HIS SON 

SANDRO WENT TO WALMART AND GOT GROCERY SUPPLIES AND BROUGHT BACK DINNER FOR A 

RESTAURANT. 
THE FOLLOWING MORNING THE FAMILY AWOKE AND THE KIDS ATE BREAKFAST. TAMARA 

LAVENIR AND ENORA LAVENIR WERE PLAYING IN THE BEDROOM. BETWEEN 200 PM AND 230 

PM ENORA WAS DISCOVERED NO RESPONSIVE IN THE BED AND WAS TRANSPORTED TO PALMS 

WEST HOSPITAL AND PRONOUNCED DECEASED. 

LYDIE AND BORIS RENTED A CAR AT THE MIAMI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT. THE COMPANY 

WAS ENTERPRISE AND THE VEHICLE BELIEVED TO BE A CHRYSLER PACIFICA. THEY 
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DESCRIBED THE VEHICLE UPON THEIR TAKING POSSESSION OF IT AT THE AIRPORT AS IN 

CLEAN CONDITION. THEY CLARIFIED FROM THE TIME THEY PICKED UP THE VEHICLE 

UNTIL THEIR DAUGHTER DEATH, THE ONLY ITEMS THE LAVENIR'S PLACED IN THE VEHICLE 

WERE: THEIR LUGGAGE TO INCLUDE A CHILD SEAT/ STROLLER COMBINATION, THE ITEMS 

FROM WALMART (FOOD, WATER, AND SUPPLIES, AND THE TAKEOUT FOOD FROM FORDS 

GARAGE. 

WHEN THE FAMILY ARRIVED AT THE RESIDENCE THEY WERE GREETED AT THE RESIDENCE BY 
THE RENTAL AGENT ALEX TIMPY WHO'S PICTURE IS ON THE AIRBNB WEBPAGE FOR THE 

RESIDENCE. ALSO PRESENT WAS AN UNKNOWN BLACK MALE WHO WAS FIXING A WINDOW ON 

THE FIRST ROOM ON THE LEFT. HE DID NOT LOOK LIKE A PROFESSIONAL HANDY MAN OR 

MAINTENANCE WORKER JUST LIKE SOMEONE WHO WAS HELPING ALEX FIX THE WINDOW. 

LYDIE LAVENIR CONFIRMED THE FAMILY DID NOT RENT THE RESIDENCE UNTIL THEY 

ARRIVED AT THE AIRPORT IN MIAMI. SHE DESCRIBED THE HOUSE AS BEING CLEANED 

THERE WERE FRESH SOAPS, TOWELS, IN THE BATHROOM AND THE HOUSE APPEARED TO HAVE 

BEEN CLEANED. HOWEVER, IT DID NOT HAVE THE APPEARANCE OF A PROFESSIONALLY 

CLEANED VACATION HOTEL, SHE GAVE EXAMPLES OF THE RITZ HOTEL. 

BORIS AND LYDIE ARE AWARE OF THE CAUSE OF DEATH OF THEIR DAUGHTER BEING AN 

OVERDOSE OF FENTANYL. THEY STATED THEY WERE NOT FAMILIAR WITH THE DRUG PRIOR 

TO THE DEATH OF THEIR DAUGHTER. LYDIE EXPLAINED SHE HAD RESEARCHED IT AFTER 

RECEIVING THE AUTOPSY REPORT. IT WAS AFTER THIS THAT SHE RESEARCHED FENTANYL 

EVEN CONSULTING WITH DOCTORS TO EDUCATE HERSELF ON THIS DRUG. 

I ASKED BORIS AND LYDIE DIRECTLY IF ANYONE IN THEIR FAMILY OR EITHER OF THEM 
HAVE BEEN PRESCRIBED FENTANYL, THEY ANSWERED "NO." I ASKED IF EITHER OF THEM 

HAD BROUGHT ANY FENTANYL INTO THE COUNTRY, THEY ANSWERED "NO." I ASKED IF 

THEY HAD OBTAINED ANY FENTANYL WHILE THEY WERE HERE IN THIS COUNTRY, THEY 

ANSWERED "NO." THEY DENIED ANY ONE OF THEM OR ANY ONE IN THEIR IMMEDIATE 

FAMILY SUFFER FROM ANY SEVER ILLNESS. 

BORIS AND LYDIE WERE ASKED IF THEY HAVE ANY THEORIES ABOUT HOW THE FENTANYL 

WOULD HAVE GOTTEN INTO THEIR DAUGHTER'S BODY. THEY HAD SPOKEN TO A DOCTOR 

ABOUT THE ISSUE AND THE DOCTOR BELIEVED IT IS POSSIBLE THE FENTANYL COULD HAVE 
BEEN IN THE SHEETS. HOWEVER, BORIS SAYS SHE WAS IN THE SHEETS BEFORE AND 
BELIEVES THIS IS NOT REASONABLE. 

LYDIE DESCRIBED ENORA AS VERY ACTIVE SHE IS ABLE TO CLIMB AND MOVE AROUND 

EASILY. SHE WAS VERY EXCITED AT THE HOUSE BECAUSE IT WAS A NEW ENVIRONMENT SO 
SHE WAS MORE ACTIVE. SHE SAID, ENORA WAS NOT KNOWN TO PUT ITEMS IN HER MOUTH 

BUT AS A CHILD SHE WAS CURIOUS AND WOULD PICK ITEMS UP AND HANDLE THEM. 

OTHER THAN THE RENTAL AGENT ALEX AND THE GENTLEMAN WHO WAS FIXING THE WINDOW 

THEY HAD NO OTHER VISITORS AND NO ONE ELSE WAS IN THE HOUSE. WHEN THEY 

ARRIVED AT THE HOUSE BORIS BELIEVES THERE MAY HAVE BEEN ITEMS IN THE 
REFRIGERATOR BUT RECALLS THESE ITEMS WERE SEALED. THEY DID NOT MEET ANY OF 

THE NEIGHBORS WHILE AT THE RESIDENCE. 
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THIS CONCLUDED THE INTERVIEW WITH LYDIE AND BORIS. FOR COMPLETE DETAILS OF 

THE INTERVIEW AUTHORIZED PERSONS CAN REFER TO THE COPY OF THE AUDIO PLACED 

INTO EVIDENCE AT THE PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SVU 

05/16/2022 

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 05/24/2022/MDR/#6405 
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OQS - Viewing Case Number 21093658  

911 Call 

P A L M  B E  A C  H C O U N T Y  S H E R  I F  F' S O F F I C E PAGE 1 

CASE NO. 21093658 SUPPLEMENT 8 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 

DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 06/08/22 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON, C. ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 
OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 

INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON APRIL 4, 2022, I RECEIVED CONFIRMATION THAT ALL OF THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED 

INITIALLY FOR THE SUBPOENA IS ALL THE OWNER HAS FOR THE RENTER. FROM THIS 

INFORMATION I WAS ABLE TO LOCATE THREE GUEST NAMES THAT RENTED THE UNIT PRIOR 

TO THE VICTIM BEING IN THE UNIT. 

THE FIRST RENTAL TAKING PLACE FROM JULY 17, 2021 TO JULY 19, 2021. THIS UNIT 

WAS RENTED BY RASHIDAH WELLS PHONE NUMBER #561-720-4002. I WAS ALSO ABLE TO 

LOCATE CADS REPORT FOR 1618 THE TWELFTH FAIRWAY WELLINGTON, FLORIDA 33414 DATE 

JULY 19, 2021. THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE WAS DISPATCHED TO THE LOCATION FOR A 

REPORT OF A LOUD PARTY. THE CALLER STATED SHE ATTEMPTED TO TALK TO THE PEOPLE 

AT THE PARTY BUT THEY CURSED AT HER. 

IN ADDITION, I OBTAINED INFORMATION ON A RENTER FROM JULY 30, 2021 TO AUGUST 

01, 2021. THIS RENTER WAS IDENTIFIED AS AARON KORNHAUSER WITH A PHONE NUMBER 

OF #813-340-1312. ALSO I LOCATED A RENTER FROM AUGUST 3, 2021 TO AUGUST 6, 

2021 SHERWIN RIVERO BUT HAVE NOT FOUND A PHONE NUMBER FOR HIM. I ATTEMPTED TO 

CALL THE FIRST TWO NUMBERS. 

I WAS ABLE TO MAKE CONTACT WITH AARON KORNHAUSER AND SET UP A ZOOM INTERVIEW 

FOR JUNE 2, 2022. THE FOLLOWING WILL BE A SUMMARY OF THE ZOOM MEETING AND IS 

NOT VERBATIM. FOR COMPLETE DETAILS AUTHORIZED PERSONS SHOULD REFER TO THE COPY 

OF THE AUDIO ENTERED INTO EVIDENCE AT THE PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 

THE FIRST PART OF THE INTERVIEW INVOLVED GATHERING AARON KORNHAUSER'S 

INFORMATION. AARON PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING SWORN STATEMENT. 

AARON CONFIRMED THE RENTAL OF THE HOUSE IN WELLINGTON FLORIDA AT 1618 THE 

TWELFTH FAIRWAY WELLINGTON FLORIDA FROM JULY 30, 2021 TO AUGUST 1, 2022. AARON 

EXPLAINED THERE WAS A GROUP OF INDIVIDUALS ALL ADULTS APPROXIMATELY TEN TO 
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TWELVE PERSONS IN TOTAL. HE CONFIRMED THERE ARE FOUR BEDROOMS IN THE 

RESIDENCE ONE MASTER BEDROOM ON THE ONE SIDE OF THE HOUSE AND THREE BEDROOMS 

ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THE RESIDENCE. AARON STAYED IN THE MASTER BEDROOM OF THE 

RESIDENCE. 

AARON SAID NO ONE WAS AT THE RESIDENCE FROM THE RENTAL AGENT AND NO ONE FROM 

THE RENTAL AGENT OR ANY MAINTENANCE PERSONS CAME BY THE HOUSE AT ALL. THE 

PARTY OF INDIVIDUALS STAYED MAINLY AT THE RESIDENCE EXCEPT FOR THE TIME THEY 

WENT TO THE CONCERT. THERE WERE NO DELIVERIES TO THE RESIDENCE THAT HE 

RECALLS. 

AARON DISCLOSED TO ME THAT THE GROUP OF INDIVIDUALS WHO STAYED AT THE 

RESIDENCE HAD USE COCAINE IN THE RESIDENCE AND MARIJUANA (WEED) WAS ALSO USED 

IN THE RESIDENCE. HE CONFIRMED IT WAS POWDER COCAINE WHICH WAS UTILIZED AT 

THE RESIDENCE. HE IS FAMILIAR WITH FENTANYL AND STATED THERE WAS NO FENTANYL 

IN THE RESIDENCE. AS FOR THE USE OF THE COCAINE AARON STATED IT WAS UTILIZED 

ON THE KITCHEN ISLAND AREA OF THE RESIDENCE. 

OTHER THAN THE INDIVIDUALS IN HIS GROUP NO OTHER INDIVIDUALS CAME TO THE 

HOUSE. HE DESCRIBES THE HOUSE AS BEING VERY CLEAN THERE WERE NO ISSUES WITH 

THE CLEANLINESS OF THE RESIDENCE. HE HAS NO EXPLANATION AS TO HOW FENTANYL 

WOULD HAVE GOT INTO THE RESIDENCE. HE DOES NOT RECALL SEEING ANY SIGNS OF ANY 

MATERIAL WHICH HE WOULD CONSIDER TO BE FENTANYL. 

THIS CONCLUDED THE INTERVIEW WITH AARON KORNHAUSER. 

I AM AWAITING A SUBPOENA FOR THE RECORDS OF YULIA ALEX TIMPY WHO IS THE 

LICENSED REAL-ESTATE SALES ASSOCIATE RESPONSIBLE FOR RENTING THE UNIT ON 

AIRBNB. 

THIS CASE IS AN INFORMATION REPORT IN REFERENCE TO THE ACCIDENTAL INGESTION OF 

THE FENTANYL. I AM STILL UNABLE TO DETERMINE THE SOURCE OF THE FENTANYL. 

PENDING CONTACT FROM THE RENTERS AND SUBPOENA FOR YULIA. 

DETECTIVE CLIFTON HAMILTON #5322 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION/SW 

06/08/2022 

TRANS. VIA EMAIL/COPY/PASTE: 06/22/2022/MDR/#6405 
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CASE NO. 21093658 SUPPLEMENT 9 0 F F  E N S  E R E P O R T CASE NO. 21093658 

DISPOSITION: ZULU 

DIVISION: DETECTIVE 

911: 

DEATH INVESTIGATION * * * 

SIGNAL CODE: 7 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT CODE: 9507 DATE: 07/13/22 SATURDAY 

ZONE: W21 GRID: WEL DEPUTY I.D.: 5322 NAME: HAMILTON CLIFTO ASSIST: TIME D 1508 A 1513 C 0905 

OCCURRED BETWEEN DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS AND DATE: 08/07/21 , 1400 HOURS 

EXCEPTION TYPE: 
INCIDENT LOCATION: 1618 THE 12TH FAIRWAY 

CITY: WELLINGTON STATE: FL 

APT. NO.: 

ZIP: 33414 

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OFFENDERS: UK NO. VEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PREMISES ENTERED: 0 

LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINGLE FAMILY 

NO. VICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESTED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0 

ON JULY 8, 2022, I RECEIVED THE INFORMATION FROM YULIA ALEX TIMPY IN RESPONSE 

FROM THE SUBPOENA. YULIA PROVIDED ME WITH RASHIDAH WELLS PHONE NUMBER 561-720-

4002 WHO STAYED AT THE HOUSE FROM JULY17, 2021 TO JULY 19, 2021. SHE ALSO 

PROVIDED ME WITH INFORMATION OF JAMES BREMNER HIS PHONE NUMBER 917-960-1190 

WHO STAYED AT THE RESIDENCE FROM JULY 23, 2021 TO JULY 25, 2021. SHE ALSO 

PROVIDED ME AARON KORNHAUSER'S INFORMATION WHO STAYED FROM JULY 30, 2021 TO 

AUGUST 1, 2021. HIS PHONE NUMBER IS 813-340-1312. 

ON JULY 12, 2022, I SPOKE TO YULIA TIMPY ABOUT INFORMATION I RECEIVED 

PREVIOUSLY ABOUT A SHERWIN RIVERO. I WAS TOLD SHERWIN RIVERO WAS SUPPOSED TO 

STAY FROM JULY 30, 2021 TO AUGUST 1, 2021 BUT THIS RESERVATION WAS CANCELLED. 

I HAVE MADE SEVERAL ATTEMPTS TO CONTACT RASHIDA ABOUT AN INTERVIEW AND 

WAS ONLY ABLE TO SPEAK TO HER ONE TIME. SINCE THIS TIME HER PHONE DOES NOT 

WORK AND I AM UNABLE TO INTERVIEW HER AT THIS TIME. I ATTEMPTED CONTACT JAMES 

BREMNER AND AM AWAITING HIS PHONE CALL. 

I AM CURRENTLY UNABLE TO DETERMINE HOW THE CHILD ENORA LAVENIR INGESTED THE 

FENTANYL, THEREFORE I AM UNABLE TO DEVELOP PROBABLE CAUSE FOR ABUSE OR NEGLECT 

LEADING TO THE DEATH OF ENORA. CURRENTLY THE MANNER OF DEATH IS LISTED AS 

ACCIDENTAL. THIS CASE WILL REMAIN FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES PENDING ANY VIABLE 

LEADS. 

DET. CLIFTON HAMILTON/#5322 
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